
To: Councillor Boulton, Convener; Councillor Jennifer Stewart, the Depute Provost, 
Vice Convener; and Councillors Allan, Cooke, Copland, Cormie, Greig, Malik and 
Avril MacKenzie.

Town House,
ABERDEEN 22 May 2019

PRE-APPLICATION FORUM

The Members of the PRE-APPLICATION FORUM are requested to meet in 
Committee Room 2 - Town House on THURSDAY, 30 MAY 2019 at 3.00 pm.

FRASER BELL
CHIEF OFFICER - GOVERNANCE

B U S I N E S S

1  Introduction and Procedure Note  (Pages 3 - 6)

MINUTES

2  Minute of Previous Meeting of 6 December 2018 - for approval  (Pages 7 - 12)

PRE APPLICATION REPORTS

3  Land at Cloverhill East of A90 Ellon Road - Major residential led mixed-use 
development of circa 500-600 units (mixed tenure affordable and private), 
community facilities, recycling centre and local shops/services (class 1,2,3 Sui 
Generis) with associated landscaping, open space and infrastructure  (Pages 13 - 
20)
Planning Reference: 190136

Planning Officer:  Gavin Evans 

Public Document Pack



To access the Service Updates for this Committee please use the following link:
https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ecCatDisplayClassic.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13450&

path=0

Website Address: www.aberdeencity.gov.uk

Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Lynsey 
McBain, email lymcbain@aberdeencity.gov.uk or tel 01224 522123 

https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ecCatDisplayClassic.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13450&path=0
https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ecCatDisplayClassic.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13450&path=0
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/


PRE-APPLICATION FORUM
PROCEDURE NOTE AND GUIDANCE FOR MEMBERS

1. This procedure note will operate on a trial basis of the Forum and will be subject to 
review and amendment during this period.

2. Meetings of the Pre-Application Forum will be held in open public session to enable 
discussion of all national and major development proposals.

3. Forums will be held as soon as possible after the submission of a Proposal of 
Application Notice (POAN) for all national and major development proposals and, in 
all cases, prior to the lodging of any associated planning application (this allows a 
period of 12 weeks following submission of the POAN).

4. The members of the Planning Development Management Committee will constitute 
the members of the Pre-Application Forum.

5. Ward Members for the Ward in which a specific pre-application proposal under 
discussion is located will be invited to the Forum but will be allowed to participate in 
the Forum only in relation to the specific pre-application proposal in their ward.

6. The relevant Community Council for the prospective development proposal(s) to be 
discussed will be informed of the date and time of the Pre-Application Forum by 
Committee Services so that they have the opportunity to attend but will not be 
permitted to participate in the business of the Forum.

7. If a Forum is required it will take place after formal business of the Planning 
Development Management Committee is concluded - this will normally be 2pm on 
the same day as the Planning Development Management Committee. The Forum will 
be separate from the Committee to emphasise the clear differences in status, 
process and procedure between the two meetings.

8. The case officer for the pre-application proposal will produce a very brief report 
(maximum 2-3 sides of A4) for the Forum outlining the proposal and identifying the 
main planning policies, material considerations and issues associated with it and the 
key information that will be required to accompany any application. The report will not 
include any evaluation of the planning merits of the proposal.

9. Agents/applicants will be contacted by Committee Services immediately on receipt of 
a POAN (or before this date if notified by planning officers of the week that a 
forthcoming POAN is likely to be submitted) and offered the opportunity to give a 10 
minute presentation of their development proposal to the members of the Forum.  
There will be an opportunity for Councillors to discuss these with the 
agents/applicants, to ask questions and indicate key issues they would like the 
applicants to consider and address in their eventual application(s). If an 
applicant/agent does not respond to this offer within 10 days, or declines the 
opportunity to give such a presentation, then their proposal will be considered by the 
Forum without a developer/applicant presentation. Committee Services will notify the 
case officer of the applicant’s response.

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



10. Case officers (or Team Leader/Manager/Head of Planning) and, if considered 
necessary, other appropriate officers e.g. Roads Projects Officers, will be present at 
the Forum. The case officer will give a very brief presentation outlining the main 
planning considerations, policies and, if relevant and useful, procedures and 
supporting information that will have to be submitted. Officers will be available to 
answer questions on factual matters related to the proposal but will not give any 
opinion on, or evaluation of, the merits of the application as a whole.

11. Members, either individually or collectively, can express concerns about aspects of 
any proposal that comes before the Forum but (to comply with the terms of the Code 
of Conduct) should not express a final settled view of any sort on whether any such 
proposal is acceptable or unacceptable.

12. A minute of the meeting will be produced by Committee Services and made publicly 
available on the Council website.

13. Members should be aware that the proposal being discussed may be determined 
under delegated powers and may not come back before them for determination. Any 
report of handling on an application pursuant to a proposal considered by the Pre-
Application Forum will contain a very brief synopsis of the comments made by the 
Forum but the report itself will be based on an independent professional evaluation of 
the application by planning officers.

14. Training sessions will be offered to Councillors to assist them in adjusting to their 
new role in relation to pre-application consultation and its relationship with the Code 
of Conduct.

15. The applicant/agent will expected to report on how they have, or have not, been able 
to address any issues raised by the Pre-Application Forum in the Pre-Application 
Consultation Report that is required to be submitted with any subsequent planning 
application.

GUIDANCE FOR MEMBERS

In relation to point  11  on the Procedure Note above , it might be helpful to outline a 
few points regarding the Councillors Code of Conduct and the Scottish Government’s 
Guidance on the role of Councillors in Pre-Application procedures  which will 
hopefully be helpful to the Members. These were discussed at the Training run by 
Burness Paull on the 28th of November, 2014.

So very briefly, The Code’s provisions relate to the need to ensure a proper and fair 
hearing and to avoid any impression of bias in relation to statutory decision making 
processes. Having said that, in terms of the Scottish Government’s Guidance on the 
role of Councillors in Pre-Application procedures:

• Councillors are entitled to express a provisional opinion in advance of a planning 
application being submitted but only as part of the Council’s procedures (as detailed 
at item 1 to this agenda)

Page 4



• No views may be expressed once the application has been submitted

• In terms of the role of the Forum, it meets to emphasise an outcome limited to the 
generation of a provisional view (on behalf of the Forum, rather than individual 
Members of the Forum) on the pre-application, this will allow:

• Members to be better informed

• An Early exchange of views

• A greater certainty/more efficient processing of applications

Members of the Forum are entitled to express a provisional view, but should do so in 
a fair and impartial way, have an open mind and must not compromise determination 
of any subsequent planning application.

In terms of dealing with Pre-Applications, Members of the Forum should:

• Identify key issues

• Highlight concerns with the proposal/areas for change

• Identify areas for officers to discuss with applicants

• Identify documentation which will be required to support application

In terms of the Code of Conduct and any interest that Members of the Forum may 
have in a pre-application, it is worth reminding Members of the Forum that they must, 
however, always comply with the objective test which states “ whether a member of 
the public, with knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard the interest 
as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your discussion or decision making in 
your role as a councillor.”

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
PRE-APPLICATION FORUM

ABERDEEN, 6 December 2018.  Minute of Meeting of the PLANNING 
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE PRE-APPLICATION FORUM.  
Present:-  Councillor Boulton, Convener; Councillor Councillor Jennifer Stewart, 
Vice-Convener; and Councillors Allan, Cooke, Copland and Sandy Stuart (as 
substitute for Councillor Cormie).

INTRODUCTION AND PROCEDURE NOTE

1. The Forum had before it the procedure note and guidance for members on the 
operation of Forum meetings.

The Forum resolved:-
to note the procedure note and guidance for members.

MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING OF 2 NOVEMBER 2017

2. The Forum had before it the minute of its previous meeting of 2 November 2017 
for approval.  

The Forum resolved:-
to approve the minute as a correct record.

ABERDEEN MARKET - MARKET STREET ABERDEEN - 181656

3. The Forum had before it a report by the Chief Officer – Strategic Place Planning, 
on a submission of a Proposal of Application Notice (PoAN) by Montagu Evans on 
behalf of their client, PATRIZIA, for a proposed major development consisting of 
demolition and redevelopment of the existing site to form a mixed use office-led 
development with Class 1 (retail), Class 2 (Financial, Professional and other services), 
Class 3 (Food and Drink), public house and Class 11 (Assembly and Leisure) with 
landscaping, public realm, car parking and associated development/works, at Aberdeen 
Market, Market Street, Aberdeen, 181656.

The report advised that the application largely related to the Aberdeen Indoor Market 
which was situated between Market Street, Hadden Street and the Green.  The main 
market building dated back the early 1970s and was set over four and five stories, with 
taller core elements on the stair and service cores.

The report also noted that the following properties also formed part of the site 
boundary:-

 6 Market Street (an adjoining retail unit)
 91 – 93 Union Street (former BHS retail premises)
 101 – 105 Union Street (retail units and vacant associated upper stories)

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



2

PRE-APPLICATION FORUM
6 December 2018

The proposal was classed as a major development and consisted of demolition of the 
market building and redevelopment of the resulting site to form a mixed use office-led 
development, with associated Class 1, 2, 3, 11 and public house uses with landscaping, 
public realm, cark parking and associated development.

The Forum heard from Pamela Grant (PATRIZIA) and Ian Fraser (Halliday Fraser 
Munro, HFM) in regard to the proposed application.  Fraser Littlejohn (Montagu Evans) 
and Stephen Diack (Architect HFM) were also in attendance to answer any questions 
from members.  Ms Grant explained that PATRIZIA invested all over Europe and 
wanted to provide sustainable developments.  She indicated that the applicant was also 
keen to incorporate street art to the site and support local artists.  Ms Gray advised that 
the applicant bought the building in 2010 and hoped to bring new life into the historic 
heart of Aberdeen.

The Forum also heard from Ian Fraser, Halliday Fraser Munro, who explained that at 
present, the building did not serve much of a purpose within the city with no active 
frontage and added very little to the area of The Green. Mr Fraser advised that the 
applicant was keen to take account of public realm and wished that the redevelopment 
be at the top end of the market, with Class A facilities.  Mr Fraser explained that they 
hoped to open up breathing space to Market Street and noted that the redevelopment 
would bring between 800 and 1100 people into the city centre every day.

The Forum then heard from Matthew Easton, Case Officer, who addressed the Forum 
and provided details regarding the planning aspects of the application and responded 
to questions from members.  Mr Easton explained that there were a number of relevant 
policies in regard to the proposed application.  Mr Easton advised that as the proposal 
was expected to see a loss of retail space, that Policy NC2 was relevant (City Centre 
Retail Core and Union Street) and noted that it would only be acceptable if:-

(a) The new use contributes to the City Centre Masterplan;
(b) Makes a positive contribution to the vitality and viability of the city centre;
(c) It does not undermine the principal retail function;
(d) The applicant can demonstrate a lack of demand for continued retail use of the 

premises;
(e) The new use does not create over provision and/or clustering of a particular use 

in the immediate vicinity which would undermine the character and amenity of 
the centre; and

(f) The alternative use does not conflict with the amenity of the neighbouring area.

Mr Easton also highlighted that the City Centre Masterplan redevelopment envisaged 
redevelopment of the Aberdeen Indoor Market to be replaced by a more contextually 
appropriate development of buildings and spaces and key criteria for any 
redevelopment of the market included:-

(i) Enhanced active frontages on Union Street, Market Street, Hadden Street and 
The Green;

Page 8



3

PRE-APPLICATION FORUM
6 December 2018

(ii) Continued retail use at Union Street level and a mix of retail, food and drink and 
leisure uses at Hadden Street level;

(iii) Appropriate scale and quality of design given the site’s conservation area setting 
and Union Street setting.

In regard to the layout and design, Mr Easton advised that the building was expected to 
be around nine storey’s tall and it was therefore important that its visual impact on the 
surrounding area and from further afield was considered carefully.  The site also sits 
within the historic core of the city centre and is part of the Union Street Conservation 
Area.

In regard to consultation, it was noted that public consultation was undertaken by the 
applicant at a drop-in event in the4 former BHS store, on Union Street on 1 November 
2018.  Display boards were available which showed the context of the site, the aims of 
any development and a brief overview of the emerging proposals.

Finally, it was noted that as part of any application submitted, the applicant had been 
advised that the following information would need to accompany the formal 
submission:-

 Air quality assessment
 Archaeology report
 Design and access statement
 Drainage Impact Assessment
 Lighting Strategy
 Noise Assessment
 Planning Statement 
 Pre Application Consultation Report
 Sustainability/Low and Zero Carbon Buildings Statement
 Townscape Visual Impact Assessment
 Transport Assessment
 Wind Assessment.

Members then asked a number of questions of both the applicant and the case officer 
and the following information was noted:- 
1. There was an appetite for improvement in the area and engagement with other 

owners in The Green was very important;
2. The public realm enhancements were also very welcomed;
3. It was important to look at lighting strategies in the area as well as the potential for a 

water feature;
4. It was suggested that the applicant liaise with Jamie McNamara who is the lead 

officer for the Conservation Area Regeneration Scheme;
5. There wasn’t such a demand for larger department stores now so the applicant was 

looking to retain the use of retail but with smaller units;

Page 9



4

PRE-APPLICATION FORUM
6 December 2018

6. In regard to vacant office spaces at present, they are looking to provide Class A 
office space, which is more efficient with the use of open space etc, more agile 
working environment and a lot of the empty buildings don’t offer the same benefits;

7. The applicant was currently engaging with Aberdeen Inspired.

The report recommended:-
That the Forum – 
(a) note the key issues identified;
(b) if necessary, seek clarification on any particular matters; and
(c) identify relevant issues which they would like the applicant to consider and 

address in any future application.

The Forum resolved:-
(i) to request that the applicant liaise with Jamie McNamara, Conservation Area 

Regeneration Scheme Project Officer in regard to the application; 
(ii) to request that the applicant engage with the other owners in the Green in regard 

to the appetite for improvements in the area and also possible lighting strategies;
(iii) to note that the Forum supported the potential water feature and the green wall;
(iv) to note that development in the area was welcomed; and
(v) to thank Ms Grant and Mr Fraser for their informative presentation.
- Councillor Marie Boulton – Convener 

Page 10



5

PRE-APPLICATION FORUM

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Pre-Application Forum

Report by Development Management Manager

Committee Date: 30th May 2019

Site Address: Land At Cloverhill (East Of A90 Ellon Road), Bridge Of Don, Aberdeen, 

Application 
Description:

Major residential led mixed-use development of circa 500-600 units (mixed tenure affordable 
and private), community facilities, recycling centre and local shops/services (class 1,2,3 Sui 
Generis) with associated landscaping, open space and infrastructure

Application Ref: 190136/PAN

Application Type Proposal of Application Notice

Application Date: 28 January 2019

Applicant: Cognito Oak LLP

Ward: Bridge Of Don

Community Council: Bridge Of Don

Case Officer: Gavin Evans

 

MURCAR 
ROUNDABOUT

ELLON ROAD

ABERDEEN ENERGY 
PARK

THE CORE 
BUSINESS PARK

Page 13

Agenda Item 3



Application Reference: 190136/PAN

RECOMMENDATION
 
It is recommended that the Forum:

(i) note the key issues identified; 
(ii) if necessary seek clarification on any particular matters; and 
(iii) identify relevant issues which they would like the applicants to consider and address in 

any future application.

APPLICATION BACKGROUND

Site Description
The site forms part of a large Business and Industrial land allocation in the Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan, further identified as an opportunity site (OP2 Berryhill, Murcar), with a flood 
risk being noted. A Green Space Network (GSN) designation covers a large swathe of land 
running from east to west through the central part of the site.

Immediately to the east are the four lanes of the now de-trunked A92 Ellon Road, with the 
exception of a small number of dwellings in two pockets of development which lie between this site 
and the road. Beyond the A92 is the Denmore industrial area. 

To the north and east is land in agricultural use, although this is allocated for future 
business/industrial development. Indeed the area to the north-east has seen various planning 
permissions granted for such development, with a number of plots further to the north-east and 
north already developed along with various elements of related infrastructure. The northern 
allocation is also an opportunity site (OP1 Murcar) and has a flooding potential. The associated 
policy (LR1 Land Release Policy) indicates that this area is not likely to see development until post 
2027.

To the south and east is again agricultural land allocated for business and industrial use, with a 
residential property towards the northern end, access to which is taken from Ellon Road. The 
southern portion of the eastern boundary is adjoined by land which is subject to an extant planning 
permission in principle (PPiP) for an extension to the Aberdeen Energy Park, the existing 
developed extent of which is a short distance further south-east. 

Further east is the coastline of the North Sea, towards which the land generally falls. The existing 
landscape comprises open agricultural fields enclosed by fences/ dry stone walls/ hedgerows and 
a number of trees at various points along these divisions. The Silver Burn passes through the 
southern extent.

Relevant Planning History
No recent/ relevant history of planning applications associated to site. However, as indicated 
above, there are a significant history of business and industrial planning permissions to the east 
and south.

Some 400m to the south is a Mixed-Use allocation, OP13 AECC Bridge of Don, subject to a 
masterplan and Planning Permission in Principle application for a residential led development (498 
units), commercial and business uses, recycling centre and park and ride facility (Ref: 150824). 
The Planning Authority are minded to grant this application, with the associated legal agreement 
not yet concluded.

Page 14



Application Reference: 190136/PAN

APPLICATION DESCRIPTION

Description of Proposal
Proposed residential led-mixed use development of circa 500 homes, community facilities, retail 
with associated landscaping, open space and infrastructure. No details, other than this written 
description and a ‘red line’ site plan have been submitted in support of this PAN, however the 
applicants may have further detail to present to the Pre-Application Forum.  Such a proposal 
would comprise a ‘Major Development’.

MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

Legislative Requirements
Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 require that where, 
in making any determination under the planning acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the 
Development Plan and that determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as 
material to the application unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

National Planning Policy and Guidance

 Scottish Planning Policy

Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan (2014) (SDP)
The purpose of the SDP is to set a spatial strategy for the future development of the Aberdeen 
City and Shire. The general objectives of the plan are promoting economic growth and sustainable 
economic development which will reduce carbon dioxide production, adapting to the effects of 
climate change, limiting the use of non-renewable resources, encouraging population growth, 
maintaining and improving the region’s built, natural and cultural assets, promoting sustainable 
communities and improving accessibility.

From the 29 March 2019, the Strategic Development Plan 2014 will be beyond its five-year review 
period. In the light of this, for proposals which are regionally or strategically significant or give rise 
to cross boundary issues between Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire, the presumption in favour of 
development that contributes to sustainable development will be a significant material 
consideration in line with Scottish Planning Policy 2014.

The Aberdeen City Local Development Plan 2017 will continue to be the primary document 
against which applications are considered. The Proposed Aberdeen City & Shire SDP 2020 may 
also be a material consideration.

Aberdeen Local Development Plan (2017)

 Policy LR1 – Land Release Policy
 Policy LR2 – Delivery of Mixed Use Communities
 Policy D1 – Quality Placemaking by Design
 Policy D2 – Landscape
 Policy NC4 – Sequential Approach and Impact
 Policy NC5 – Out of Centre Proposals
 Policy NC8 – Retail Development Serving New Development Areas
 Policy I1 – Infrastructure Delivery and Planning Obligations
 Policy T2 – Managing the Transport Impact of Development
 Policy T3 – Sustainable and Active Travel
 Policy T5 – Noise

Page 15



Application Reference: 190136/PAN

 Policy B1 – Business and Industrial Land
 Policy B4 – Aberdeen Airport 
 Policy H3 – Density
 Policy H4 – Housing Mix
 Policy H5 – Affordable Housing
 Policy CF2 – New Community Facilities
 Policy NE1 – Green Space Network
 Policy NE4 – Open Space Provision in New Development
 Policy NE5 – Trees and Woodlands
 Policy NE6 – Flooding, Drainage and Water Quality
 Policy NE8 – Natural Heritage
 Policy NE9 – Access and Informal Recreation
 Policy R6 – Waste Management Requirements for New Development
 Policy R7 – Low and Zero Carbon Buildings, and Water Efficiency
 Policy CI1 – Digital Infrastructure

The site occupies approximately 23ha of a wider 68.4ha site allocated in the Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan for Business and Industrial use (identified as Opportunity Site OP2: Berryhill, 
Murcar in the ALDP). That Opportunity Site designation highlights that a Development Framework, 
approved in 2008, covers OP2 and a neighbouring site to the north (OP1: Murcar) and states that 
land is available for development within Use Classes 4 (Business), 5 (General Industrial) and 6 
(Storage or Distribution). Notes that a Flood Risk Assessment is required to accompany future 
development proposals. 

Supplementary Guidance and Technical Advice Notes

 Master Plans;
 Energetica;
 Transport and Accessibility;
 Noise;
 Planning Obligations;
 Affordable Housing;
 Landscape;
 Children’s Nurseries;
 Natural Heritage;
 Open Space;
 Trees and Woodland;
 Flooding and Drainage.

Other Material Considerations

Airport Safeguarding: All buildings, structures, erections and works exceeding 45
metres in height (147.6 feet) require consultation with Aberdeen international Airport.

Bat Habitat: Identified around all boundaries – buffer zone and habitat creation
opportunities should be provided.

Aspirational Core Path route: Transects middle of site W-E.

Cycle network: Exists to west side of A90, connection should be provided.

Green Space Network (GSN): Large parts of sites central and south-western areas

Page 16



Application Reference: 190136/PAN

west of Silver Burn are identified GSN, this equates to c. 30% of site.

Flood Risk: Pockets in the south-western extents and elsewhere across the site are
identified as being at risk of flooding, as identified on the SEPA Flood Map.

Open and Play Spaces: The identified site is located out with buffer zones for existing
facilities and as such appropriate provision would have to be made.

CONSIDERATIONS

Principle of Development
In general terms both the OP2 Opportunity Site Designation and underlying land use policy (B1 – 
Business and Industrial Land) safeguard the site from non-compliant uses (specifically promoting 
those falling within Classes 4 (Business), 5 (General Industrial), and 6 (Storage or Distribution)). 
Appendix 2 to the ALDP lists the various opportunity sites and in this instance notes the existence 
of an approved 2008 Development Framework and a requirement for a Flood Risk Assessment to 
accompany development proposals.

Policy LR1 (Land Release Policy) notes: “Development on an allocated site…..that jeopardises the 
full provision of the allocation will be refused”. In this case it would appear that this proposal for 
residential development on a business and industrial allocation would preclude the full delivery of 
that business and industrial allocation and impact on the strategy of the Development Plan. On 
that basis, the proposal is considered to represent a significant departure from the Development 
Plan. 

The Aberdeen Local Development Plan allocates land for residential developments to meet the 
needs of the area, and a Housing Land Audit for Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire is published 
each year to determine if there is sufficient land available for housing development in the area, 
with a requirement set out in Scottish Planning Policy for authorities to provide at least a five year 
land supply at all times. Consideration of any housing proposal on this site would include 
assessment of the extent to which the full realisation of the allocated employment use would be 
precluded, and also whether there is sufficient land allocated and available for residential 
development. Members should note that significant departures from the Development Plan 
necessitate the holding of a Pre-Determination Hearing and require that any such application be 
determined by Full Council, per s38A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended) and Regulation 27 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management 
Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013.

LR2 (Delivery of Mixed Use Communities) allows for small scale complementary uses associated 
to the underlying land use allocation, which in this case is for Business and Industrial uses, 
“provided there is no conflict with the spatial strategy of the plan or the achievement of the 
specified housing and employment provision”. This proposal involves the development of circa 
23ha of a 68.4ha employment land allocation (33.6%).

B1 (Business and Industrial Land) reiterates that land zoned for business and industrial uses on 
the Proposals Map (as this site is) shall be “retained for Class 4 (Business), Class 5 (General 
Industrial) and Class 6 (Storage or Distribution) uses and safeguarded from other conflicting 
development types”.

Policies NC4 (Sequential Approach and Impact), NC5 (Out of Centre Proposals) and NC8 (Retail 
Development Serving New Development Areas) address the ‘town centre first’ policy advocated by 
Scottish Planning Policy for significant footfall generating uses such as retail. The proposal 
description refers to inclusion of a ‘mixed use’ element, although no quantum is specified, it may 
be that this element will require to be explored via a sequential testing exercise. It is noted that 

Page 17



Application Reference: 190136/PAN

parts of the site appear within 800m from existing shopping facilities, primarily the ‘Bridge of Don 
Retail Park – an identified commercial centre, as is the area immediately west of Ellon Road, 
incorporating ‘Sterling’ and other primarily bulky retail operators. Depending on the scale and 
nature of any retail use, a Retail Impact Assessment may be required. In the event that the 
principle of residential development were to be accepted, it may be appropriate for any new 
residential community to be provided with local convenience shopping facilities. 

Policy I1 (Infrastructure Delivery and Planning Obligations) necessitates consultation with the 
Council’s Developer Obligations Team to assess the impacts of the development and identify 
where those impacts might be addressed by the developer, establishing the scope and extent of 
any necessary planning obligations/legal agreement. Transport infrastructure issues will be 
assessed by the relevant Roads Authority. Further guidance on the methodology for assessing 
necessary developer contributions is set out in the associated ‘Planning Obligations’ SG.

Layout and Design
Policy D1 sets out that high standards of design are required, creating quality places and also 
reflecting contextual factors. Particularly well considered landscaping (hard and soft) will be 
required, with consideration for retaining and utilising existing features. Site layout and street 
hierarchy should facilitate access to a range of sustainable transport options, with the scale of any 
interventions and new infrastructure commensurate with the scale of development proposed. A 
clear design strategy is expected to inform and support any proposals, with the masterplan 
process to be applied to larger sites, such as this. The Aberdeen Masterplanning Process 
Technical Advice Note sets out expectations for the content of any masterplan document 
accompanying an application, though it is noted that the full process of adoption as Supplementary 
Guidance would not apply, given the significant departure from the Development Plan inherent 
within this proposal.

Policy H3 seeks an appropriately high density of development. For larger sites the expectation is 
that a minimum of 30 dwellings per hectare is achieved, although this should consider contextual 
factors. The required Masterplan should determine appropriate densities for the site, with regard to 
its ‘core’ and edges.

Policy H4 (Housing Mix) states that developments of 50 or more units are expected to achieve a 
mix of dwelling types and sizes, in line with a masterplan. This should result in a wide mix spread 
across both market and affordable tenures, and should include provision for smaller 1 and 2 
bedrooms units, family homes and accommodation for older people.

H5 (Affordable Housing) – No less than 25% of housing units shall be affordable. Further guidance 
is available in the related SG, with the expectation that these will be delivered onsite.

Some 30% of the site is identified in the LDP as Green Space Network. Policy NE1 expects that 
this area will be protected from development and that the quality and extent of GSN is enhanced in 
terms of its wildlife, access, recreation, ecosystem services and landscape value. Consideration 
for that GSN designation should form part of a strong landscape framework. A landscape strategy 
and management plan will be required, including  both hard and soft landscaping specifications 
and consideration for ecological enhancement and for new planting to provide a landscape setting 
to new development, particularly addressing its relationship to Ellon Road and to the remaining 
undeveloped parts of the OP2 Business and Industrial allocation. 

Policy NE5 presumes against loss or damage to trees and woodlands which contribute to nature 
conservation, landscape character, local amenity or climate change adaptation and mitigation. It is 
expected that an Arboricultural Impact Assessment, including Tree Protection and Mitigation Plan 
would guide proposals and provide for compensatory planting, temporary earth works and any site 
preparation. It is also expected that there would be creation of new woodland and planting of 

Page 18



Application Reference: 190136/PAN

native trees as part of the development, and in line with an overarching landscape strategy. Trees 
and Woodlands Supplementary Guidance offers further detail.

Policy NE4 set out standards for the provision of open space in new residential development, with 
further detail contained in related SG.

Given the positioning of a busy trunk road to the east and evolving business and industrial areas 
to the west and north, there is potential for significant exposure to noise. As such a Noise impact 
Assessment (NIA) is likely to be required in connection with policy T5 (Noise) to inform layout and 
mitigation options, again so as not to prejudice the surrounding allocations, whilst also ensuring 
that development within the site is not adversely affected by such adjacent development. Further 
guidance is contained within the associated ‘Noise’ SG.

It is considered that the proposed development could have an impact on protected species, as an 
example the site is for large parts identified as suitable bat habitat. As such, policy NE8 (Natural 
Heritage) will require that appropriate surveys and protection plans/ mitigation are submitted, 
covering all relative flora and fauna. Please note the related SG for further guidance.

Transport and Accessibility
The proposal involves the development of a ‘greenfield’ site which lies to the north of the city and 
is immediately adjacent to the busy Ellon Road. Policy T2 (Managing the Transport Impacts of 
Development) requires that proposals of this scale are accompanied by a Transport Assessment 
and Travel Plan, which should demonstrate that sufficient measures have been taken to minimise 
traffic generated and maximise opportunities for sustainable and active travel, both internally and 
linking to surrounding communities and key infrastructure. Of particular importance is providing for 
‘Safe Route to Schools’ from first occupations. ACC’s Roads Development Management team 
would be involved in assessment of the proposal, and may advise on vehicular access/ egress 
and roads layout, as well as any crossing (pedestrian and multi-modal) points of roads. Policy T3 
(Sustainable and Active Travel) places specific focus on layouts prioritising walking, cycling and 
public transport, whilst policy NE9 (Access and Informal Recreation) offers protection for existing 
Core Paths, rights of way and other established recreational routes. It is noted that the footpath 
adjacent to the western boundary is of a poor standard and also that there is a aspirational core 
path identified on the LDP Additional City Wide Proposals Map as crossing the site E-W. The 
location and quality of crossing on Ellon road, particularly in relation to ‘Safe Routes to School’ 
requires careful consideration. Recreational access opportunities associated to enhanced GSN 
are also expected. 

Technical Matters
The layout and design of the development should have regard for the provisions of policies NE6 
(Flooding, Drainage and Water Quality), R6 (Waste Management Requirements for New 
Development), R7 (Low and Zero Carbon Buildings, and Water Efficiency) and CI1 (Digital 
Infrastructure).

Many parts of the site are identified as being at risk of flooding and there is an existing water body 
which transverses its southern part. As such it is expected that a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) 
will support the proposals. In addition a Drainage Impact Assessment (DIA) will also be required. 
More detail on the requirements of both the DIA and FRA are contained within policy NE6 and 
associated SG. The applicants have previously submitted a request (ref 190162/ESC) for the 
planning authority to adopt a ‘screening opinion’ as to whether Environmental Impact Assessment 
would be necessary in relation to this proposal. ACC concluded that statutory EIA would not be 
required for the development described, but highlighted various other supporting documents that 
would be required in support of a future planning application. This information is available via the 
planning portal, using the reference number noted above.

Page 19



Application Reference: 190136/PAN

PRE-APPLICATION CONSULTATION

Public consultant was undertaken by the applicant at a drop-in event at St Columba’s Church, 
Bridge of Don, on Tuesday 26th February 2019, between 1pm and 8pm. The event was manned 
by members of the design team, who were available to respond to any queries about the proposal. 
A number of display panels were used to provide background to the site, illustrate the proposals 
and explain the planning consultation process, with large format plans available to in order to 
facilitate discussion. 

NECESSARY INFORMATION TO SUPPORT ANY FUTURE APPLICATION

As part of any application, the applicant has been advised that the following information would 
need to accompany the formal submission –

 Pre-Application Consultation Report
 Flood Risk Assessment
 Analysis of Business/Industrial and Housing Land supply
 Details of mitigation of potential conflict between housing and business/industrial uses
 Masterplan
 Design and Access Statement
 Landscape Strategy and Management Plan
 Retail Impact Assessment (depending on scale of retail offering)
 Commentary on sequential test to site selection (depending on scale of significant footfall 

generating use)
 Transport Assessment
 Travel Plan
 Noise Impact Assessment
 Affordable Housing Delivery Strategy
 Tree Survey, Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Tree Protection Plan
 Drainage Impact Assessment
 Protected Species Surveys and Mitigation Plans
 Low and Zero Carbon Buildings and Water Efficiency Statement

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Forum
(i) note the key issues identified; 
(ii) if necessary seek clarification on any particular matters; and 
(iii) identify relevant issues which they would like the applicants to consider and address in 

any future application.

Page 20


	Agenda
	1 Introduction and Procedure Note
	2 Minute of Previous Meeting of 6 December 2018 - for approval
	3 Land at Cloverhill East of A90 Ellon Road - Major residential led mixed-use development of circa 500-600 units (mixed tenure affordable and private), community facilities, recycling centre and local shops/services (class 1,2,3 Sui Generis) with associated landscaping, open space and infrastructure

